
January 25, 2006 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
An Environmental Committee meeting was held on Wednesday, January 25, 2006 at 5:30 p.m. in 
the County Administration Building, Quorum Court Meeting Room, 215 East Central, Bentonville, 
Arkansas 
 
Committee Members Present: Adams, Moore, Schindler, Tharp, Sampier, Wozniak 
  
Others Present: County Attorney Ed Gartin, Tom Wilkerson, JP Jerry Sheridan, Jim Ecker 
 
Media:  Jennifer Turner, Daily Record; Joe Askins, Morning News 

  
I.   Call to Order: 
 JP Bob Tharp called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
II. Approval of Minutes of November 15, 2005: 
 JP Sampier made motion to approve the minutes of the November 15, 2005 meeting as 
 distributed, seconded by JP Moore. 
 
III. Old Business: 
 1.  Update on Washington County Ordinance requiring septic tank inspection prior to sale of 
property – Environmental Services Director Jim Ecker 
JP Tharp stated that since the committee had not received copies of the proposed  ordinance, they 
would move it to the next Environmental Committee meeting. 
 2.  Update on Nuisance Ordinance 
JP Tharp stated that the proposed nuisance ordinance has been sent to the Planning Board for a 
public hearing, and will hopefully be on next month’s agenda.  
 3.  Update regarding Environmental Committee Mission Statement and Goals 
JP Tharp stated that they have not completed the mission statement and goals that were requested 
by the County Judge at the beginning of last year.  He recognized JP Wozniak, who read a list of 
goals and objectives that he had prepared.  JP Sampier suggested changing some of the language to 
avoid listing every area of environmental concern.  JP Tharp stated that this item would be moved 
to the next Environmental Committee meeting, possibly in February.   
 
IV. New Business: 
 1.  Trash Pick-up in Eastern Benton County – Jim Ecker 
JP Tharp recognized Environmental Services Director Jim Ecker who gave a report on some 
problems that residents on the east side of the County are encountering with the new trash service 
provider that has contracted with the City of Rogers.  He stated that the previous provider had 
allowed individual bags of trash, and the new hauler does not.  He said that they are trying to work 
out an agreement with the new company, but are having difficulty getting a response from the 
owner.  JP Sheridan stated that the minimum he wants to charge is too expensive for the poor and 
elderly residents of the County.  Jim Ecker stated that they are looking at establishing a drop off 
location for individual bags of trash, but that the Solid Waste District did not have the funds at the 
present time to cover the cost.    
 2.  Discussion -- Proposed Beaver Lake Watershed Protection Ordinance 

Environmental Committee Report  1 of 4 
January 25, 2006  



JP Tharp stated that he has received an email from James Gately recommending that a working 
committee be formed with members of the Environmental Committee and representatives from the 
various groups that are involved with the Beaver Lake Watershed Protection issue.  JP Wozniak 
asked how many would be on the proposed committee.  JP Tharp stated that it would be comprised 
of approximately 14 -21 people.  JP Wozniak suggested keeping the committee at a more 
manageable number.  JP Schindler suggested adding the Planning Committee.  JP Tharp agreed.  JP 
Adams read a statement which is attached.  JP Moore stated that he continues to believe that they 
are putting the cart before the horse with the Watershed Ordinance, and that any regulations 
regarding land use around the lake could be addressed through an overlay district within a 
countywide Zoning Ordinance.  JP Sampier stated that he completely supports the Watershed 
Protection Ordinance, however, he believes a pragmatic solution would be the proposed working 
committee of the various stakeholders in Beaver Lake, as long as they approach the task with the 
understanding that the watershed must be protected, and not after the fact.  He added that he has 
never seen any county in Arkansas tackle so many difficult issues all at once.  JP Wozniak 
suggested sending the ordinance back to the Beaver Water District officials to make any changes 
that they want to make, and then taking it to the proposed working committee, as long as it is a 
manageable size.  JP Sampier stated that they should embrace the issue as a county issue, and not 
just as a Beaver Water District issue.  The committee discussed who would serve on the committee 
and how the committee would be formed.  County Attorney Ed Gartin stated that he would research 
state law to see what the requirements were.  JP Adams stated that they needed to make sure that the 
property owners in the area were represented.  JP Schindler made motion to form the committee 
following whatever guidelines County Attorney Ed Gartin provides, seconded by JP Moore.  JP 
Adams asked if they would have approval of the members appointed by the County Judge.  County 
Attorney Ed Gartin stated they would follow State law.  JP Adams stated that he wanted to make 
sure that all of the stakeholders in Beaver Lake were represented so that when the ordinance is 
brought back, it comes from a unified effort of the stakeholders and the County Administration.  JP 
Sampier stated that there are no guarantees like that, and that they can get as broad a representation 
as possible, but could never include enough people to develop something that will have universal 
acceptance.  JP Moore agreed.  JP Adams said he would restate his desire to achieve a “uniform 
feeling of fairness”.  Motion passed by unanimous show of hands vote. 
JP Tharp stated that he had requested at the January 18 Planning Board meeting that the ordinance 
be returned to the Environmental Committee, because he feared that in its present form, it was 
something that neither he nor his constituents wanted.  JP Tharp recognized Alan Fortenberry, CEO 
of the Beaver Water District, who stated that: 1) Beaver Lake was created in 1965 primarily as a 
public water supply; 2) There are four utilities pulling water out of Beaver Lake, with Beaver Water 
District being the largest serving 250,000 people; 3) With a total of 360,000 people being served by 
Beaver Lake, 1 out of every 8 Arkansans gets their drinking water from Beaver Lake; 4)  The only 
goal that the Beaver Water District is trying to achieve is to protect the water quality; 5) Water 
quality dictates water cost, due to the level of treatment required; 6) The Beaver Water District is 
the only entity that spends money to protect the water quality of Beaver Lake, and have been the 
only ones spending money in the development of this ordinance; 7) The regulations they have 
proposed are based on nationally recognized and accepted facts obtained from the EPA; 7) Each and 
every one of us impact water quality, no matter how minuscule the impact, and any change in land 
use affects water quality, because any change in the percentage of impervious surface creates the 
potential for pollutants to enter the lake through runoff.  He concluded by saying we might not see 
changes in water quality in Beaver Lake, but our grandchildren will, and only they will know 
whether we have succeeded or failed.  He added that the Beaver Water District will continue to 
work on the Watershed Protection Ordinance in whatever format the County desires, but that the 
most important thing was to identify that format because it is very important that they act.     
Environmental Committee Report  2 of 4 
January 25, 2006  



 
V.     Public Comments: 
Kenneth Schossow of Prairie Creek stated that he appreciated the committee’s willingness to review 
the ordinance again.  He said that he is working with Citizens for a Fair Watershed Ordinance, is a 
landowner, and does not think anyone disputes the need to take care of Beaver Lake.  He said that 
there are tools, regulations, and entities already in place that address regulation enforcement, and he 
does not understand why we need an ordinance.  He said that if he wants to develop his forty acres 
on the lake, the County already has oversight of that development, and he would do everything he 
could to make his project as good as possible to keep the lake in its present pristine condition.  He 
did not see why anyone would do less with the cutting-edge technology available today, and 
believed this issue could be addressed without confining anyone’s property rights.   
Bill Millager of Brightwater Township stated that he had worked with the Land Use Committee, 
and ABLE, and he had four major concerns.  He said that it was a mistake to grandfather in the non-
conformists, and that they should at least be phased out because otherwise they are guaranteeing 
pollution.  He said his second concern is that the proposed ordinance still does not identify specific 
hot spots or pollution sinkholes.  He said the third was that the Special Use Zones are arbitrary and 
not founded on technical principles, and finally that there should be a moratorium on development 
while this is all being sorted out.   
Robert Kossieck of Rocky Branch stated that he has done a lot of research on water quality, and has 
contacted the County Extension Service and the University of Arkansas Department of Entomology 
and has looked at the Beaver Lake water quality records.  He said that he cannot see a problem on 
Beaver Lake, which is not to say that they couldn’t have one in the future.  He said we have a 
County Extension Service to ride herd on septic systems, and they should do their job and make the 
people clean up problem septic systems.  He stated that he has looked at 30 years of Bella Vista 
Property Owners’ Association records on their lakes, and they are not polluted even though they are 
surrounded by homes that are all on septic tanks.  He added that there were problems with a few, 
but those people were forced to correct them, and the lakes are so clean that they had to add 
fertilizer to support bait fish for sport fishing.  He said that he does not see the problem if 
everything that is already in place works like it is supposed to.   He cited a Supreme Court ruling 
regarding regulation of property, which states that regulation that goes too far constitutes the taking 
of property.  He made a Freedom of Information Act Request asking for copies of materials used in 
developing the Watershed Protection Ordinance, copies of professional studies, documents, and 
interoffice correspondence, emails, and records of telephone conversations pertaining to this issue.  
He said the request was primarily because there did not appear to be much study done on the 
ordinance before it came out.   
Roger Norbeck of Bella Vista stated that he was on the Bella Vista Village Board of Directors, and 
cited one recent instance of pollution on a lake in Bella Vista.  He said they have many water 
quality problems in Bella Vista.  He read a letter from the Board of Directors to the Quorum Court 
in support of the Watershed Ordinance and stated that the Board was unanimous in their support, 
and represented roughly 28,000 people. 
Mark Curtis of Rogers stated that he was representing Save the Lake, and they recognize the 
problems that the ordinance needs to address.  He said it boils down to the fact that keeping the 
water clean will cost in both dollars and lifestyle.  He said the history of other lakes shows that 
something needs to be done soon, and cited Lakes Catherine and Hamilton in Hot Springs, where a 
6-year moratorium on development was put in place due to problems.  He added that there had been 
problems with the Lake of the Ozarks in Missouri, Lake Tenkiller in Oklahoma and Lake Tahoe in 
Nevada.  He said that his group agrees with the proposal to form the committee and get the 
ordinance in place. 

Environmental Committee Report  3 of 4 
January 25, 2006  



Environmental Committee Report  4 of 4 
January 25, 2006  

Greg Jones of Garfield proposed adding two people that the ordinance would affect financially, one 
person at the Planning meeting who had said the ordinance will put him out of business, and himself 
because it will cost him $150,000.  He asked how many people had contacted the Health 
Department to find out why they did not have enough manpower to deal with septic system issues.  
He said he did not know how many good septic systems could be placed around the lake without 
harming it, but he imagined it would be quite a few if they could correct the ones that are leaching 
into the lake.  He suggested letters and petitions be sent to the legislature to address the Health 
Department’s lack of staffing, and said it should be done while they are working on a new 
ordinance.   
Michael Phillips of Piney Woods stated his concerns with the ordinance as it is written, and that he 
was concerned that the committee would be made up of more people in favor of the ordinance than 
those against it.  He said he was not a fan of regulation but they needed to make sure that the lake 
was protected whether it is through existing regulations or a new ordinance.  He said he had a 
problem with the infringement of civil liberties, and that a member of this committee contacted his 
employer to try to prevent him from being negative about the ordinance.  He said there is good 
science available, but he does not know if it has been used on Beaver Lake, and cited an Arkansas 
Democrat-Gazette article about a conference involving a Professor of Environmental Engineering 
from Western Australia who was invited by the U.S. Geological Survey – Arkansas Water Science 
Center discussing Beaver Lake and Beaver Lake water.  He said that the committee should be 
chosen through applications reviewed by the Environmental Committee or the County Judge.   
Doug Timmons of Riviera Drive stated that he is convinced that there are people who do not think 
that there is a problem with the water quality in Beaver Lake.  He said he has lived there since 1998, 
and has observed changes in the water quality such as more algae, and a lack of clarity in the south 
end.  He stated he supports the working committee, and fully supports a good ordinance, although 
he has concerns about the one that was proposed.   
Jim Gately, of Rogers, asked how long we would continue to ignore evidence of decreasing water 
quality, such as the fact that the water is brown, and tastes bad during the lake turnover.  He said 
that the tools that should work to prevent storm water runoff are not working.  He said a permit is 
permission to pollute within a range.  He said that a watershed ordinance would not be a fix, but 
would prevent the pollution from getting worse.  He said that he was arguing for the public interest, 
and agreed that some of the restrictive provisions in the ordinance needed to be looked at.  He 
applauded the committee for giving the citizens a voice in what is happening.   
Tony Miltich, of East High Meadows, stated that he was the president of the Association for the 
Beaver Lake Environment and they are strongly in favor of this ordinance.  He said reading all of 
the regulations gave him pause, and he was glad that there would be number of viewpoints looking 
at them.  He said that in the future ABLE would be working hard to serve as a watchdog to make 
sure existing regulations are enforced, and to make sure that whatever is put in place works.   
JP Tharp stated that any groups present that were not identified correctly, or any other group that 
provided a broad representation of people living around the lake and wanted to be included on the 
committee should contact a Justice of the Peace.   
  
VI.      Announcements: 
JP Sheridan stated that ABLE will be meeting on February 6, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. at the Shewmaker 
Center on the NWACC campus.  
 
JP Adams apologized for raising his voice at a Planning Board meeting on January 18.   
 
After motion and second the meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 


	I.   Call to Order:
	 JP Bob Tharp called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

